
 City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for January 10, 2019 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

II. Previous Minutes

Approval of Minutes of the December 13, 2018, Regular Council Meeting ...................................1 

III. Persons to Be Heard

a. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

IV. Unfinished Business

None

V. New Business

a. Resolution No. 2019–01, Adopting a FY2020 State Capital Improvement Program List..8

b. Resolution No. 2019–02, Rescinding Resolution No. 2013–19 and Re-Establishing a

Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee ………………………………….14

c. Resolution No. 2019–03, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Water), of the Schedule of Fees

and Charges to Allow Water Discounts as Incentive for the Collection of a Water Sample

Program…………………………………………………………………………………..34

d. Authorization of City Clerk Employment Agreement With Nova Javier………………..40

e. Appointment of City Advisory Board Members……………………………………...….46

VI. Staff Reports

a. City Manager

b. City Clerk

VII. Mayor’s Comments

VIII. Council Comments

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

X. Adjournment



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



8393 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2018 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Acting Deputy Mayor Randall C. Bishop called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

Councilmembers Terry J. Haines, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present

and constituted a quorum. Mayor Branson and Councilmembers Laura B. Arboleda and

Charles E. Davidson were absent. City Manager Mike Tvenge, City Clerk Debra Marlar,

and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also present.

Salvation Army Major Dave Davis gave the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance was

recited.

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the November 8, 2018,

regular meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor.

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD

a. Public Comments

Larry Van Daele thanked City staff for providing the after action report from the 

January earthquake, and he thanked Police Chief Putney and Fire Chief Mullican for the 

information during the public meeting. He expressed his concern that the State of Alaska 

had not signed the after action report and volunteered to contact them. He shared his 

concern that some sirens have not been fixed and stated his opinion that the City should 

reprioritize funding allocations until the sirens were fixed. 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1383, Amending Chapters

2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, And 19 of the City Personnel

Rules And Regulations; Amending the Definitions in the City Personnel Rules

And Regulations; and Amending Kodiak City Code 2.08.065 Deputy City

Manager-Appointment, Powers, And Duties

Acting Deputy Mayor Bishop read Ordinance No. 1383 by title. For the last few years, a 

comprehensive review and update to the City of Kodiak’s Personnel Rules and 

Regulations Manual (PR&R) has been consistently identified by employees and 

1



DECEMBER 13, 2018 8394 

department heads alike as being a critical need. Council reviewed the PRR amendments 

at previous work sessions and passed the ordinance in the first reading at the November 

regular meeting. 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1383. 

Acting Deputy Mayor Bishop closed the regular meeting, opened and closed the public 

hearing when no one came forward to testify, and reopened the regular meeting. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.  

V. NEW BUSINESS

a. Election of Deputy Mayor

Under the provisions of City Charter Article II, Section 2, the City Council shall elect one 

of its members as Deputy Mayor no sooner than thirty days, nor more than sixty days, 

from the beginning of the newly-elected Councilmembers’ terms. The Deputy Mayor 

serves a one-year term and acts as Mayor in the Mayor’s absence. If a vacancy occurs in 

the office of Mayor, the Deputy Mayor serves until another Mayor is elected by the 

Council. 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to elect Laura Arboleda as Deputy Mayor for a one-

year term. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.  

b. Appointment of City Representative to the Kodiak Fisheries Work Group

Resolution No. 2018–02, which was adopted January 11, 2018, re-established the scope 

and authority of the Kodiak Fisheries Work Group (FWG) and reduced the number of City 

and Borough representatives serving on the FWG from three to two. Mayor Pat Branson 

and Councilmember John Whiddon have served as the City’s representatives to the FWG. 

Councilmember Haines has expressed interest in serving on the FWG and Mayor Branson 

has voiced support that he be appointed to replace her. Councilmember Whiddon will 

continue to serve as the other City representative until a successor is appointed. 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to appointment Terry Haines to the Kodiak Fisheries 

Work Group to serve until a successor is appointed. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.  

2



DECEMBER 13, 2018 8395 

c. Recommendation of Appointments to City Seats on the Planning and Zoning

Commission

Three of the seven seats on the Planning and Zoning Commission are designated as City 

seats. There is one vacant City seat and one that expires at the end of December. The 

Council needs to recommend applicants for appointment by the Borough Mayor. Two 

applications have been received from City residents – one from incumbent Barry Altenhof 

and one from former City P&Z representative Alan Schmitt. 

Councilmember Haines MOVED to recommend Alan Schmitt for appointment to the 

vacant City seat on the Planning and Zoning Commission for a term to end in December 

2020 and Barry Altenhof to the expiring seat for a term to end in December 2021. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.  

d. Authorization for the Clerk Hiring Committee to Negotiate With Nova Javier for

the City Clerk Position

The City Clerk is hired by and works directly for the City Council under contract. In 

November 2018 the City Clerk indicated she planned to retire effective April 30, 2019. 

The Deputy City Clerk has expressed she is not interested in the Clerk position at this 

time. The Council established a Clerk Hiring Committee at their November 6, 2018, work 

session. On November 21, 2018, the Clerk Hiring Committee received a letter of interest 

from Nova M. Javier, MMC. On November 28, 2018, the Clerk Hiring Committee met to 

establish a timeline and to review the letter of interest and other materials submitted by 

Ms. Javier. 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize the Clerk Hiring Committee to negotiate 

with Nova Javier for the City Clerk position. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.  

VI. STAFF REPORTS

a. City Manager

Manager Tvenge said Pillar Mountain road was closed until further notice; he said the 

gate at the bottom of the hill is locked. He commented that there was ice all the way up 

the road, and the road is expected to remain closed until spring. He reminded the public 

that Pillar Mountain is a non-maintained service road; however, it is still open to 

pedestrian travel at this time. He said the Waste Water Treatment Plant at 2853 Spruce 

Cape Road would receive and dispose of Christmas trees after the holidays. He shared 

that citizens may dispose of their natural tree on the lower parking area, which will be 

marked with signs identifying the drop off area. Manager Tvenge shared that the speed 

3



DECEMBER 13, 2018 8396 

limit through the City’s portion of Mission Road was reduced to 20 miles per hour. He 

said after listening to public comments and conducting meetings with Public Works and 

Public Safety it was determined that section of the road would benefit by lowering the 

speed limit 5 miles per hour and signage was placed accordingly. He said the City will 

enter into an agreement with KEA to provide electricity at a discounted rate to run the 

electric boiler at the Kodiak Public Library, which is intended to reduce the overall 

heating bill by five percent or greater. He highlighted this will save the City 

approximately $500 annually and emphasized that every little bit helps reduce the City’s 

expenses. He said the City will collect household water samples beginning in January 

2019 to comply with DEC requirements. He shared that staff will contact a list of 

residents to volunteer samples for testing; volunteers will receive a discount on their 

January or February water bills. He wished everyone a safe and happy holiday season. 

b. City Clerk

Clerk Marlar informed the public of the next scheduled Fisheries Work Group meeting 

on December 19, 2018, the City work session on January 8, and the regular Council 

meeting on January 10. 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Acting Deputy Mayor Bishop congratulated newly appointed Deputy Mayor Arboleda on

her new role; he said she is ambitious and always brings new ideas. He thanked Alan

Schmitt and Barry Altenof for volunteering to serve on P&Z. He said he hopes the New

Year brings new perspective and new outlook for 2019 for the City of Kodiak. He said he

is pleased with the new speed limit for Mission Road. He wished everyone a happy

holiday season.

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Haines thanked Debra Marlar and stated she has provided a great service

as Clerk and demonstrated dedication over the years. He thanked the Council for their

appointment to the Fisheries Work Group and said he is pleased with the forward

progress the group has made over the years.

Councilmember Whiddon congratulated Deputy Mayor Arboleda for her new leadership

role. He provided a heartfelt thank you to all the staff for their service. He wished

everyone a Merry Christmas and safe travels for those that leave the island.

Councilmember Walker congratulated Councilmembers Haines and Arboleda. He said he

was glad to see the reduced speed on Mission Road and he supports lit up signs.

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

Katya Johnson, via telephone, questioned the City Manager’s qualifications and stated

her opinion that the City Code was violated because his application has not been released

to the public. She asked the Council for a legal opinion.

4



DECEMBER 13, 2018 8397 

Clerk Marlar asked to make a comment based upon the caller’s comments. She 

provided an overview of the City Manager hiring process, the City Code, the public 

records request outcome, and verified that she received an attorney’s opinion for the 

release of the Manager’s application. She clarified that the Manager submitted a letter of 

intent, which was released based upon the recommendation of the attorney and clarified 

that the Deputy City Manager’s application was not releasable to the public in accordance 

with City Code. 

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. City Manager’s Annual Performance Review

Annually, the City Council reviews the performance of the City Manager. In accordance 

with the Open Meetings Act, the City Manager does not object to the evaluation being 

done in executive session. 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to enter into executive session, as authorized by 

Kodiak City Code Section 2.04.100(b)(2), to conduct the City Manager’s annual 

performance evaluation. 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to postpone the executive session to perform the 

Manager’s evaluation to a future meeting when the full Council and Mayor are present. 

The roll call vote on the postponement was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, 

and Whiddon in favor. Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The 

motion passed.  

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adjourn the meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in favor.

Councilmembers Arboleda and Davidson were absent. The motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved:  

5



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

6



NEW BUSINESS 

7



8



9



Resolution No. 2019–01 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2019–01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ADOPTING 

A FY2020 STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM LIST  

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak uses a Capital Improvements Program planning process 

to identify the capital improvement project needs of the community; and 

WHEREAS, this identification and planning process plays a vital role in directing the 

City’s administration and is utilized as a long-range planning and policy setting tool for City 

infrastructure maintenance and enhancement; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak is committed to paying its way to the greatest extent 

possible, but the cost of some of the City’s capital project needs are greater than the resources 

available locally; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak City Council has identified and prioritized capital improvement 

projects for submission to the Alaska State Legislature and Governor for funding consideration 

due to their significance and/or magnitude; and 

WHEREAS, the National Marine Fisheries Service identified Kodiak as the second 

largest commercial fishing port in the United States in terms of volume and third largest in terms 

of value of product landed in their most recent national report, and the City requires a large 

infrastructure to support this commercial activity; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak relies upon the State of Alaska’s legislative and 

matching grant programs and the Community Assistance Program to continue to keep its 

economy strong. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that the following infrastructure replacement/improvement projects and issues are considered of 

primary importance and are hereby adopted as the City of Kodiak’s FY2020 State capital 

improvement project and issues list: 

1. New Fire Station, Phase II  14,000,000 

The City of Kodiak identified the need to replace its fire station and has been working toward 

a replacement plan since 2004. The building has clearly outlived its design life. The building 

is composed of three structures and sits on a site that is currently very vulnerable as rests 

within the tsunami inundation zone. The structure is built of cement block type construction 

built in the 1940s with two block and wood frame additions added in the 1960s and 1975. 

The structure poses a significant risk of failure in a seismic event. Cracks in the walls and 

initial separation of one of the additions from the rest of the structure occurred following the 

large 7+ earthquake in 2016 and suffered additional damage during the January 2018 

earthquake 60 miles off the Kodiak coast. It has ongoing plumbing, drainage, and water 

Attachment A

10



Resolution No. 2019–01 

Page 2 of 4 

infiltration issues. The facility houses personnel, fire and rescue apparatus, three ambulances, 

and many types of specialty equipment and medical supplies that support the Advanced Life 

Support services offered to the entire Kodiak area well beyond the City boundaries. The 

building condition poses constant challenges and problems to the crews who work and live in 

the structure. Work to replace this building must continue because it is a key emergency 

response and life-safety facility for Kodiak and continues to require constant maintenance.  

The City proposes completion of the project in three phases. Phase I of this project with a 

budget of $1,110,000 and funded by the City was used to study the site, for a new facility 

once a derelict building is removed. It included the removal of the derelict building, site 

grading, and other work following the demolition of the old building. Phase I is complete. 

Phase II would include a new site acquisition and design completed prior to construction. 

Relocation would make the project more affordable to do in phases, would reduce the impact 

to the active fire station, and benefit the transition to a new building. Phase II costs would 

include site acquisition and building design anticipated during FY2019-20. The City has 

received a legislative grant award of $76,755 for partial building design costs. The remaining 

cost, would be required to complete construction and furnish the facility. 

The City of Kodiak is requesting funding for Phase II of the New Fire Station project from 

the State in an amount of $14,000,000 to ensure the project continues to move forward. This 

project may also be suitable for a GO Bond package in the event the legislature pursues 

bonds as a capital budget financing mechanism. 

2. St. Herman Harbor Infrastructure Replacement $28,000,000

The economy of the City of Kodiak is based upon commercial fishing including local, state

and federal governmental activities associated with support of the fisheries as well as

research and enforcement activities. Each year Kodiak ranks as a top commercial fishing

port. In 2015, NOAA statistics again put Kodiak as the second largest commercial fishing

port in the United States in terms of volume and third in terms of value. This activity requires

an infrastructure of potable water, electrical systems supply, and harbor and dock

infrastructure that is much larger than its population might suggest. Current piling repairs

indicate the life to date of the docks which are failing after 50 years of use.

The Kodiak Harbor Department relies on the generation of user fees and the State of

Alaska’s Harbor Facilities Grant Program to help match municipal costs for dock

replacements. The City’s request of state funding assistance in the amount of $28,000,000

would help the City develop a plan, including replacement of this aging infrastructure which

supports the nations scientific and food source needs.

3. Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility $ 19,000,000

The first phase of a larger project is to evaluate the condition of the Waste Water Treatment

Plant facility (WWTP) and design a necessary upgrade to the City of Kodiak facility. The

11



Resolution No. 2019–01 

Page 3 of 4 

prior upgrade to the facility was in 1999. The condition and evaluation assessment included 

all major components such as the building and aeration basins; including equipment 

replacement needs. Alaska Pollution Discharge Elimination System (APDES) permitting 

requirements are also considered during this assessment. The City of Kodiak has received the 

Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) APDES permit. This new 

regulation of compliance requires upgrades to our facility including additional monitoring 

and testing requirements. The APDES permit set a five-year timeline for full compliance of 

effluent discharge, which has been factored in our condition and evaluation assessment. 

The City of Kodiak is requesting state funding in the amount of $19,000,000 to further 

assess, design and construct this WWTP project that will help support the wastewater needs 

of the community for the next twenty years.  

4. Parks and Recreation Facility Upgrade $250,000

The City of Kodiak provides multi-purpose recreation programs for the community residents

and visiting public. Baranof Park is home to playground facilities, tennis, track and field,

baseball, football, soccer, ice skating and hockey. The park’s use continues to increase and

has outgrown its original design. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, together with

the City Council, have requested a master plan study to identify the future growth options.

A local committee of volunteers has offered to provide matching funds to assist with design,

and construction of needed improvements. The areas considered include additional parking,

enclosure the ice rink, field house or locker rooms, etc. The master plan study is intended to

identify these priorities and costs associated with construction.

The City of Kodiak is requesting state funding assistance for the master plan study of

Baranof Park, in the amount of $250,000 to identify facility upgrades.

5. Shelikof Street $1,950,000

In 2009, the City identified the need for pedestrian improvements from Pier II to downtown

Kodiak as the preferred pedestrian route for cruise ship passengers to safely walk the street

into the town center and to improve facilities for local residents, workers, and businesses that

use the pier, street, and access to the City’s adjacent 250 slip boat harbor.

The first phase of the project, construction of an ADA accessible sidewalk, new retaining

walls, improved lighting and parking, and utility work was completed in 2013. The second

phase of the project was completed in January 2017. This phase covered geotechnical

investigation, design, permitting, mapping, preparation for permitting through the Army

Corps of Engineers, and 95% completion of the design to accommodate a 30 space bulkhead

parking area on the south side of Shelikof Street adjacent to St. Paul Harbor.

The net increase in parking will benefit harbor users and retail businesses along Shelikof

Street. It will provide improved and safer pedestrian access from Marine Way to the fish

12



Resolution No. 2019–01 

Page 4 of 4 

processors in the immediate area. The task for this phase will be to complete construction of 

the bulkhead parking area, including curb and gutter, paving, lighting, and utility relocates. 

The City of Kodiak is requesting state funding assistance for the final construction of this 

project, including administration, in the amount of $1,950,000 to enhance pedestrian and 

vehicle safety. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

13



14



15



Resolution No. 2019–02 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2019–02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK RESCIND-

ING RESOLUTION NO. 2013–19 AND RE-ESTABLISHING A DOWNTOWN KODIAK 

REVITALIZATION SPECIAL COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak City Council adopted Resolution No. 2013–19 on July 11, 2013, 

Establishing a Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the City Mayor identified a large group of people representing businesses, 

non-profits, and other community members willing to work toward positive solutions for devel-

opment of the City’s public space in the downtown area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Mayor selected the committee, which established three initiatives to 

revitalize the downtown area: Economic Development; Social Issues and Public Safety; and 

Beautification and Public Space Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the three initiatives of Economic Development; Social Issues and Public 

Safety; and Beautification and Public Space Improvements were identified as subcommittees 

with a Chair assigned by the City Mayor; and 

WHEREAS, the City Mayor, City Manager, and subcommittees have established short-

term and long-term priorities for the downtown Kodiak area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Mayor desires to Chair a refined committee to include the sub-

committee Chairs of Economic Development; Social Issues and Public Safety; and Beautifica-

tion and Public Space Improvements to revitalize downtown Kodiak; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak City Mayor and City Council desire to continue to revitalize 

downtown Kodiak by reducing crime, brightening the downtown area, and attracting new 

businesses. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, 

Alaska, that Resolution No. 2013–19 is rescinded and the revised Resolution No. 2019–02 for a 

Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee is hereby established. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Membership. The committee shall be chaired by the Kodiak City Mayor, and the

Mayor is granted authority to name members of the committee.

2. Scope.

Attachment A

16



Resolution No. 2019–02 

Page 2 of 2 

a. The committee shall focus on community concerns pertaining to safety,

security, economic development, and aesthetic appeal of downtown Kodi-

ak.

b. The committee shall not have direct power to affect policy determinations,

but shall be able to make recommendations to the City Council.

c. Committee meetings shall be open to the public, and public notice shall be

provided at least three days prior to each meeting.

d. The committee shall be effect until the resolution is rescinded.

3. Consensus. The affirmative votes of a simple majority of members present at a

meeting shall be required to build consensus of the committee.

4. Administrative Support. The City Clerk’s Office shall provide administrative sup-

port as requested by the Mayor.

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

17



CITY OF KODIAK
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ESTABLISH
ING A DO\VNTOWN KODIAK REVITALIZATION SPECIAL COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Kodiak City Mayor and City Council desire to revitalize downtown
Kodiak by reducing crime, brightening the downtown area, and attracting new businesses; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor desires to chair a committee of individuals interested in revitaliz
ing downtown Kodiak.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak,
Alaska, that a Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee is hereby established.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

I. Membership. The committee shall be chaired by the Kodiak City Mayor, and the
Mayor is granted authority to name members of the committee.

2. Scope.
a. The committee shall focus on community concerns pertaining to safety,

security, economic development, and aesthetic appeal of downtown Kodi
ak.

b. The committee shall not have direct power to affect policy determinations,
but shall be able to make recommendations to the City Council.

c. Committee meetings shall be open to the public, and public notice shall be
provided at least three days prior to each meeting.

d. The committee shall be effect until it presents its final report to the City
Council.

3. Consensus. The affinnative votes of a simple majority of members present at a
meeting shall be required to build consensus of the committee, so long as at least
five members are in attendance.

4. Administrative Support. The City Clerk's Office shall provide administrative sup
port as requested by the Mayor.

Resolution No. 2013-19
Page 1 on

Attachment B

18



ArrEST:

CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 2013-19
Page 2 of2

Adopted: July 11,2013

19



Downtown Kodiak Revitalization 
Committee Interim Report 2017 

Page 1 of 5 
Updated December 2017 

The Downtown Revitalization Committee was established by Resolution No. 2013–19 on July 

11, 2013. The Kodiak City Mayor and City Council’s vision was to revitalize downtown Kodiak by 

reducing crime, brightening the downtown area, and attracting new businesses.  

A special committee was formed by the City Mayor with approximately 25 members of the 

community. The committee met and established three initiatives to revitalize the downtown 

area: Economic Development; Social Issues and Public Safety; and the Beautification and Public 

Space Improvements. From these initiatives three subcommittees were formed and a Chair of 

each committee was appointed by the Mayor. Through the subcommittees short-term and 

long-term priorities were drafted and given to the City’s department heads to review and 

provide feedback. In 2014 the City’s department heads through the City Manager helped to 

finalize the official Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Committee priorities.  

Various community members, volunteers, business owners, members of the committee, and 

City staff have worked on priorities from 2014 to current. Here is a report of the 

accomplishments of the committee, progress on the established priorities, and a summary of 

the remaining priorities.  

A Downtown business survey was initiated by Trevor Brown at the Chamber of Commerce in 

2015 to help seek input from the public and business owners in the area. There were 321 

participants in the public survey. A majority of the respondents answered that Downtown 

Revitalization was a very important issue. The top three areas of focus for downtown were to 

improve the businesses and services, improve public gathering spaces, and improve cleanliness 

and trash removal. One of the top comments was there were too many inebriants and vagrants 

surrounding the businesses. Some of the services in the downtown area that interested the 

public were a family center, grocery store, and ice/cream/sandwich shop. 

Increased monitoring was requested by the committee and the Chief of Police worked on public 

awareness and gave continual updates through the City Manager during public meetings. 

Trends showed that increased monitoring has and continues from KPD in the downtown area. 

Lacking depth in the Kodiak City Code and concerns about violating citizens’ constitutional 

rights the Kodiak Police Department’s (KPD) ability to address ongoing problems in the 

downtown area had been limited. In efforts to address some of the concerns from citizens and 

staff regarding the growing homeless, indigent, and inebriate population in the downtown area 

the City’s Attorney was able to conduct research and develop regulations to meet the City’s 

needs and an ordinance was drafted. On January 28, 2016, the Council adopted Ordinance No. 

1341, Repealing Kodiak City Chapter 8.20, Assault and Battery, Adopting Kodiak City Code 

Attachment C

20



Downtown Kodiak Revitalization 
Committee Interim Report 2017 

Page 2 of 5 
Updated December 2017 

Chapter 8.20, Offenses Against Public Order, and Repealing Kodiak City Code 8.56.060, 

Disorderly Conduct; 8.64.010, Begging; and 8.64.020, Jostling People; and Kodiak City Code 

1.12.040, Disposition of Scheduled Offenses–Fine Schedule. (Currently the ordinance has been 

challenged by a group and the City Attorney is addressing these concerns). 

Paint over graffiti at the City Harbor facilities was a priority of the committee. In response to 

address this priority the City Harbormaster has cleaned and painted walls in the restroom, 

removed graffiti, weeded around the building, and pressure washed and stained the handrails 

all around the parameter of the harbor. The City’s harbor staff clean and wash the walkways 

routinely. Part of the long-term priority plan includes providing public restrooms, public 

showers, and laundry facilities. The Harbormaster has worked to remodel the Fisherman’s hall 

building creating public meeting space, restrooms, and the showers and restrooms became 

available to the current port, harbor and shipyard customers and crew in September of 2017.  

The local media highlighted the new accommodations for the Ports and Harbor customers. 

Locating the Thelma C exhibit in the downtown area has been an ongoing initiative supported 

by the Kodiak Maritime Museum, committee, and the City Council. The Council adopted an 

ordinance and a lease to support the exhibit in the in the harbor area. On January 12, 2017, 

Toby Sullivan, Executive Director, Kodiak Maritime Museum, thanked the Council for granting a 

lease for the Thelma C and stated they are awaiting some architectural drawings, and he hoped 

that construction would have started in the spring, the exhibit placement is still in progress. 

The pocket park redesign to beautify and eliminate loitering was an area of focus for the 

committee. The City’s Public Works and Parks and Recreation department have worked on the 

landscaping and maintaining the appearance regularly. The City Manager monitors this 

initiative and updates are provided to the Mayor and Council during regular meetings. The long-

term pocket park improvements will be considered after infrastructure piping replacement in 

the downtown area. 

In efforts to help beautify and keep the downtown area clean an initiative to place more 

attractive garbage/recycling cans downtown was supported. At the direction of Council the City 

purchased garbage cans that were researched and initiated by Bruce Schactler, which were 

vibrant, improve the access to a garbage container, and help beautify the downtown area. 

Business owners have also purchased these additional garbage cans for the downtown area.  

21



Downtown Kodiak Revitalization 
Committee Interim Report 2017 

Page 3 of 5 
Updated December 2017 

The garbage cans are emptied frequently by City staff and business owners. A priority that is 

tied to this initiative is dealing with littering, which has prompted the involvement of local 

volunteers that perform litter pick up and the Chamber of Commerce annually directs litter 

patrol in the summer months in the downtown area. The Council has discussed a plastic bag 

ban ordinance that could help decrease local littering. 

The downtown parking enforcement and the review of allocation of all day and two hour 

parking was a priority that the committee reviewed in July 2015; they were satisfied with the 

allocation and enforcement. It was also determined the parking plan was a Planning and Zoning 

process to review and they would defer to that Commission. There was a parking plan proposed 

and was never advanced by the Commission. Another priority focused on the parking lots with 

junk vehicles left behind. In 2015 the City Manager spoke on this issue clarifying that the City 

will remove junk vehicles that are on City property. The removal of junk vehicles on private 

property was deemed a property owner issue and therefore, this was no longer a priority that 

was needed to be addressed by the committee. 

Redesign landscaping at the Y was a priority of the committee. In January 2016, the City 

Manager indicated the Garden Club and Parks and Recreation have maintained the area that is 

owned by DOT. This priority will remain an annual task to revisit for beautification as needed. 

In January 2016, the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Committee started collaborating with 

Kodiak Strong/Healthy Tomorrows. Kodiak Strong/Healthy Tomorrows was created to promote 

wellness across Kodiak Island through healthy initiatives; they began working on initiatives to 

also help the downtown area thrive. For the downtown area they have focused on a farmers 

market and a co-op. The Executive Director of Healthy Tomorrows regularly updates the 

Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Committee on their activities, which helps streamline the 

initiatives for the area. The Kodiak Harvest co-op initiative is still in progress. 

The sandwich boards were highlighted during the priority setting period that the City Code 

should be enforced and updated. In April 2016, City Council adopted Ord. No. 1344, Repealing 

Kodiak City Code 12.08.030, Obstructions; Amending Kodiak City Code 12.12.030, Outdoor 

Dining Permit/Encroachment Permit Required; and Enacting Kodiak City Code Chapter 12.18, 

Encroachment Permits, Regarding the Permission of Encroachments on City Sidewalks and 

Other City Property. The updates to the City Code have allowed business owners in the 

downtown area to create additional seating outside their buildings. 

During the January 2017 Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Committee meeting the City Manager 

indicated that the City staff will be reviewing design plans for the Shelikof restrooms. A 

memorandum of agreement was signed with Brechan the owner of the Safeway building 

22



Downtown Kodiak Revitalization 
Committee Interim Report 2017 

Page 4 of 5 
Updated December 2017 

downtown to display interpretative panels. These panels were introduced by Bruce Schactler 

and Anjuli Grantham at several Council work sessions to help revitalize the downtown area. In 

addition, most recently, the Council initiated a contract with Ms. Ayers for economic 

development and she will be invited to participate in the Economic Development subcommittee 

of the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Committee.  

There have been several focus groups that are meeting and advocating for changes in the 

current legislation that deals SB91. In summary this criminal justice reform bill has caused some 

local disadvantages for law enforcement in Kodiak, specifically the downtown area. 

Participating in necessary recommendations and monitoring discussions is on the forefront of 

City staff and the Social Issues and Public Safety subcommittee. Currently, there are changes in 

this legislation and the Chief of Police is scheduled to provide updates in 2018 to the City 

Council. 

On August 10, 2017, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1364, Amending Section 5.04.050 of the 

Kodiak City Code Pertaining to Procedures for Issuing Permits for Community.  Since the 

inception of the committee, there was a desire to establish events that bring people 

downtown.  The procedural change that amended the Code will streamline the process for all 

community event requests on public property to be determined efficiently. In December, the 

City Manager authorized a hot chocolate and cookies fundraiser for the North Star Elementary 

Lego Robotics Team during the Harbor Lights Festival to help the team travel to Anchorage in 

January.  

In addition, during the Fall of 2017, the Council authorized a Cooperative Agreement between 

the City of Kodiak and Sun’aq Tribe for Improvements to Shelikof Street, which is located in 

downtown area and the FY2018 Marketing and Tourism Development Agreement with Discover 

Kodiak. The Beautification Subcommittee worked with the Chamber of Commerce and City 

Manager’s office to purchase and install new banners; the banners highlight Kodiak’s unique 

island qualities.  In 2017 the Economic Develop Special Committee was established, members 

were appointed, and the committee had their first meetings in November. The Downtown 

Special Committees Sub-committee Chair of Economic Development is participating in this 

newly formed committee. 

The Social Issues and Public Safety Subcommittee Chair on the Downtown Committee has been 

a strong advocate of eliminating malt liquor from the Downtown Safeway store due to the 

vagrancy and inebriation in the area.  On December 14, 2017, The Council voiced a non-

objection vote to the State of Alaska Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office to transfer the 

Safeway Inc. Liquor license ownership. As part of the process the City Manager, Deputy City 

23



Downtown Kodiak Revitalization 
Committee Interim Report 2017 

Page 5 of 5 
Updated December 2017 

Manager, and Chief of Police drafted a letter for Council’s consideration indicating that 40 oz 

cans of alcohol, malt liquor, and 50 ml “mini bottles” of liquor and spirits are the primary types 

and sizes of alcoholic beverages being abused downtown. The letter commented that the 

alcohol abuse, public inebriation, theft, assault and lewd behavior in the downtown area has 

had direct negative on businesses in the local area.  The Council endorsed the letter to 

Albertson’s Vice President, which emphasized the City had reservations about the store 

contributing to the public inebriation by selling those items.  

On December 14, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1370 Amending Chapter 5.04 

of the Kodiak City Code to Add a New Section 5.04.080 Pertaining to Procedures for Issuing 

Permits for Retail Sales of Seafood Directly From Vessels at City Port and Harbor. This is another 

exciting event/activity option in the downtown area, and the permit process will start in 

January 2018.  

The remaining priorities are attached. 

24



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

Su
rve

y D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 B

u
sin

e
ss O

w
n

ers 

an
d

 Em
p

lo
yee

s fo
r Id

eas fo
r 

B
e

au
tifyin

g

C
h

am
b

er o
f C

o
m

m
e

rce 

d
evelo

p
ed

 im
p

lem
e

n
ted

, an
d

 

an
alyzed

 a su
rvey

C
h

am
b

er o
f C

o
m

m
e

rce, C
ity M

an
ager, 

an
d

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
evitalizatio

n
 

Su
b

-C
o

m
m

ittee
 C

h
airs

C
h

am
b

er's Execu
tive D

irecto
r 

im
p

lem
e

n
ted

 th
e su

rvey an
d

 th
e 

resu
lts w

e
re co

m
p

iled
; R

e
view

ed
 

b
y Su

b
-C

o
m

m
ittee

 C
h

airs 6
/24/15; 

C
o

n
sen

su
s to

 u
se su

rveys as 

b
acku

p
 m

aterial w
h

en
 p

resen
t 

p
rio

rities to
 C

ity C
o

u
n

cil 

Su
rvey co

m
p

leted
 in

 2
015 b

y th
e 

C
h

am
b

er o
f C

o
m

m
e

rce. Th
e 

resu
lts w

ill b
e u

sed
 to

 su
p

p
o

rt th
e 

co
m

m
ittee

s p
rio

rities      

X

P
lace

 m
an

y m
o

re
 a

ttra
ctive 

garb
age/re

cyclin
g can

s d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 

an
d

 e
m

p
ty th

e
m

 re
gu

larly

Th
e

 co
m

m
ittee

 d
eterm

in
ed

 

w
h

e
re ad

d
itio

n
al garb

age can
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e lo

cated
.

C
ity M

an
ager, P

u
b

lic W
o

rks, P
arks an

d
 

R
ecreatio

n
 an

d
 So

lid
 W

aste 

M
an

agem
en

t

Th
e

 C
ity allo

cated
 fu

n
d

s an
d

 

p
rivate b

u
sin

e
sses p

u
rch

ased
 

garb
age can

s

 In
 2

016 garb
age can

s w
e

re 

p
u

rch
ased

 an
d

 P
arks an

d
 

R
ecreatio

n
 in

stalled
 garb

age can
s 

in
 th

e d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 m

all area

X

1
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

Attachment D

25



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

P
o

cke
t P

ark re
d

e
sign

 to
 b

eau
tifiy an

d
 

e
lim

in
ate

 lo
ite

rin
g 

(P
h

a
se II o

f P
o

cket P
a

rk w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

m
a

in
ten

a
n

ce-co
u

ld
 b

e m
o

ved
 to

 lo
n

g
-

term
 p

rio
rities p

la
n

s refer to
 

B
ea

u
tifica

tio
n

 su
g

g
estio

n
s)

1
. R

e
view

 an
d

 d
iscu

ss w
ith

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 R

e
vitalizatio

n
 Sp

ecial 

C
o

m
m

ittee
 a p

o
cke

t p
lan

 

red
esign

2
. R

e
view

 an
d

 o
b

tain
 a co

n
sen

su
s 

u
sin

g th
e d

raft lan
d

scap
e m

aster 

p
lan

 fo
r red

esign
 o

p
tio

n
s w

ith

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 R

e
vitalizatio

n
 

C
o

m
m

ittee
. (P

rio
ritize d

esign
 

co
n

cep
ts n

u
m

erically)

* A
n

gu
lar C

o
n

cep
t 

* O
cean

 C
o

n
cep

t 

* C
o

m
p

ass C
o

n
cep

t

* N
ew

 C
o

n
cep

t 

3
. Estab

lish
 a co

st an
alysis o

f 

p
o

cke
t p

ark co
n

cep
ts

4
. C

M
  w

o
rke

d
 w

ith
 C

ity staff o
n

p
o

cke
t p

ark p
lan

 to
 rep

o
rt b

ack 

to
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 co
m

m
ittee

.

5
. P

u
t o

n
 agen

d
a fo

r C
o

u
n

cil 

review
 p

o
cke

t p
ark p

lan

6
. P

arks an
d

 R
e

creatio
n

, o
th

er 

d
ep

ts. , an
d

 vo
lu

n
tee

rs to
 

im
p

lem
e

n
t p

lan
 if ap

p
ro

ved
.

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
evitalizatio

n
 Sp

ecial 

C
o

m
m

ittee
, C

ity M
an

ager, D
e

p
t. H

ead
s, 

M
ayo

r an
d

 C
o

u
n

cil, vo
lu

n
tee

rs

Effective Jan
u

ary 2
016 K

o
d

iak Stro
n

g's 

P
lan

n
in

g In
itiative is to

 stren
gth

en
 

d
o

w
to

w
n

 areas a fo
cu

s is th
e p

o
cke

t 

p
ark

Estab
lish

m
en

t o
f a Taskfo

rce to
 

w
o

rk o
n

 reco
m

m
en

d
atio

n
s fo

r D
ay 

Sh
e

lter very im
p

o
rtan

t fo
r th

e 

su
ccess o

f p
o

cke
t p

ark

D
eterm

in
e if reso

u
rces n

ee
d

 to
 b

e 

given
 to

 b
u

sin
e

ss o
w

n
e

rs 

C
lean

 u
p

 an
d

 lan
d

scap
in

g h
as 

o
ccu

rred
 b

y P
u

b
lic W

o
rks an

d
 

P
arks an

d
 R

e
creatio

n
 d

ep
artm

en
ts 

sin
ce early 2015. Th

is w
ill b

e 

o
n

go
in

g an
d

 C
M

 freq
u

en
tly 

p
ro

vid
e

s u
p

d
ates to

 th
e 

co
m

m
ittee

.      

O
n

 Jan
u

ary 2
8, 2

016, th
e C

o
u

n
cil 

ad
o

p
ted

 O
rd

in
an

ce N
o

. 1
341, 

R
ep

ealin
g K

o
d

iak C
ity C

h
ap

ter 

8.20, A
ssau

lt an
d

 B
attery, 

A
d

o
p

tin
g K

o
d

iak C
ity C

o
d

e 

C
h

ap
ter 8

.20, O
ffen

ses A
gain

st 

P
u

b
lic O

rd
er, an

d
 R

e
p

ealin
g 

K
o

d
iak C

ity C
o

d
e 8.56.060, 

D
iso

rd
erly C

o
n

d
u

ct; 8
.64.010, 

B
eggin

g; an
d

 8
.64.020, Jo

stlin
g 

P
eo

p
le; an

d
 K

o
d

iak C
ity C

o
d

e 

1.12.040, D
isp

o
sitio

n
 o

f Sch
ed

u
led

 

O
ffen

ses–Fin
e

 Sch
ed

u
le.  Lo

n
g-

term
 p

o
cke

t p
ark im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

w
ill b

e co
n

sid
e

red
 after 

in
frastru

ctu
re p

ip
in

g rep
lacem

e
n

t 

in
 th

e d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 area.

Sh
o

rt-Term
 

P
rio

rity 

C
o

m
p

leted
 

an
d

 th
e 

R
ed

esign
 o

f 

P
o

cket P
ark 

w
ill b

e o
n

 th
e 

Lo
n

g-Term
 

P
rio

rity List

2
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

26



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

P
ain

t o
ver graffiti a

t th
e

 H
arb

o
r 

facilities 

P
ro

vid
e

 an
d

 o
verview

 o
f H

arb
o

r 

facilities restro
o

m
  m

ain
tan

en
ce 

sch
ed

u
le. 

C
lean

 an
d

 p
ain

t w
alls in

 

restro
o

m
, rem

o
ve graffiti, w

e
ed

 

aro
u

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g e
tc. 

P
ressu

re w
ash

 an
d

 stain
 th

e 

h
an

d
rails aro

u
n

d
 th

e p
aram

eter 

o
f th

e h
arb

o
r. Sw

ee
p

 clean
 an

d
 

w
ash

 th
e w

alkw
ays ro

u
tin

e
ly. 

W
ee

d
 an

d
 u

p
grad

e exitistin
g 

lan
d

scap
e/grass area.

P
ressu

re w
ash

 an
d

 stain
 gazeb

o

Id
en

tify d
esign

 ch
an

ges fo
r th

e 

restro
o

m
 an

d
 co

m
p

are o
th

er 

b
u

ild
in

g typ
es (N

o
te: in

 lo
n

g term
 

p
rio

rities )

H
arb

o
rm

aster, Lo
n

 W
h

ite su
m

m
arized

  

im
m

ed
iate actio

n
s th

e h
arb

o
r 

d
ep

artm
en

t can
 co

m
p

lete to
 p

ro
vid

e
 

b
eau

tificatio
n

 an
d

 p
u

b
lic sp

ace 

im
p

ro
vem

e
n

ts  

C
o

sts w
ill b

e id
e

n
tified

 after p
lan

 

review

C
o

m
p

leted
 p

ain
tin

g an
d

 clean
in

g 

th
is w

ill b
e an

 o
n

go
in

g p
rio

rity to
 

m
ain

tain
 area

X

En
su

re
 th

e
 T

h
e

lm
a C

 e
xh

ib
it is 

in
stalle

d
 a

t p
lan

n
ed

 site

Th
e

 C
ity M

an
ager w

ill w
o

rk o
n

 an
 

o
rd

in
an

ce to
 su

b
m

it to
 th

e 

C
o

u
n

cil fo
r review

 an
d

 ap
p

ro
val

C
ity M

an
ager, M

ayo
r an

d
 C

o
u

n
cil, 

M
aritim

e M
u

seu
m

C
o

m
p

leted
 th

e C
ity M

an
ager 

w
o

rke
d

 w
ith

 K
M

M
 an

d
 th

e C
o

u
n

cil 

ad
o

p
ted

 O
rd

in
an

ce N
o

. 1
340, 

A
u

th
o

rizin
g a Lease to

 K
o

d
iak 

M
aritim

e M
u

seu
m

 fo
r Th

elm
a C

 

Exh
ib

it. 2
016 R

e
cin

d
ed

 O
rd

in
an

ce 

1340 an
d

 ad
o

p
ted

 O
rd

in
an

ce 1356 

fo
r n

ew
 lo

catio
n

 fo
r Th

elm
a C

. 

K
M

M
 p

lan
s to

 h
ave Th

e
lm

a C
. 

Exh
ib

it co
m

p
leted

 b
y su

m
m

e
r 

2017

Exp
ected

 

C
o

m
p

letio
n

 

in
 Su

m
m

e
r 

2017-p
en

d
in

g

3
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

27



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

R
o

tary Sign
-"W

elco
m

e
 K

o
d

iak"
Estab

lish
 a lo

catio
n

 fo
r th

e sign
 

w
ith

 th
e D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 

R
evitalizatio

n
 C

o
m

m
ittee

 (N
o

te: 

lo
catio

n
 m

ay d
eterm

in
e size)

*Ferry Te
rm

in
al 

*A
irp

o
rt

*D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 o

r o
th

er

C
ity M

an
ager, D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 R
e

vitalizatio
n

 

C
o

m
m

ittee
, P

u
b

lic W
o

rks D
irecto

r an
d

 

H
arb

o
rm

aster

R
o

tary P
resid

e
n

t

Tem
p

o
rary sign

s w
e

re co
m

p
leted

 

an
d

 d
isp

layed
 in

 th
e d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 

area d
u

rin
g M

ay 2
015 b

y R
o

tary. 

Th
e

 R
o

tary is w
o

rkin
g o

n
 

p
erm

an
en

t sign
s

Sh
o

rt-Term
 

P
rio

rity 

C
o

m
p

leted
 

an
d

 th
e 

P
erm

an
en

t 

W
elco

m
e

 

Sign
 m

o
ved

 

to
 th

e  Lo
n

g-

Term
 P

rio
rity 

List

In
cre

ase
 m

o
n

ito
rin

g d
o

w
n

to
w

n
K

P
D

 u
p

d
ates to

 C
o

u
n

cil an
d

 

co
m

m
u

n
ity w

ith
 p

resen
tatio

n
s o

f 

m
o

n
ito

rin
g d

o
w

n
to

w
n

P
u

b
lic A

w
aren

ess an
d

 C
o

n
tin

u
al 

U
p

d
ates

Im
p

lem
e

n
t a C

itizen
s W

atch

C
ity M

an
ager

 K
P

D

K
P

D
 O

fficers
C

ity M
an

ager ro
u

tin
e

ly ch
ecke

d
 in

 

w
ith

 th
e D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 

Su
b

co
m

m
ittee

 C
h

airs as 

m
o

n
ito

rin
g in

creased
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

. 

C
o

m
m

ittee
 h

as co
n

cu
rred

 

im
p

ro
vem

e
n

t sin
ce Ju

ly 2015.  

P
o

lice C
h

ief h
as p

ro
vid

e
d

 several 

p
o

w
erp

o
in

t p
resen

tatio
n

 o
f 

services d
elivered

 fro
m

 K
P

D

X

4
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

28



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

M
o

n
ito

r litte
rin

g, th
ro

u
gh

 

su
rve

illan
ce

 cam
e

ras an
d

 p
atro

l-

co
lle

ct fin
es an

d
 give m

an
d

ato
ry 

co
m

m
u

n
ity se

rvice
 to

 th
o

se
 cau

gh
t

C
ity p

ro
ject to

 o
b

tain
 cam

eras, 

w
irin

g, m
ain

tain
 eq

u
ip

m
en

t

K
P

D

C
o

u
rts

C
ity M

an
ager ro

u
tin

e
ly ch

ecke
d

 in
 

w
ith

 th
e D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 

Su
b

co
m

m
ittee

 C
h

airs as 

m
o

n
ito

rin
g in

creased
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

. 

C
o

m
m

ittee
 h

as co
n

cu
rred

 

im
p

ro
vem

e
n

t sin
ce Ju

ly 2015.  

C
u

rren
tly th

ere is n
o

 fu
n

d
in

g fo
r 

su
rveillan

ce cam
eras.  C

h
am

b
er o

f 

C
o

m
m

erce w
ill d

irect litter p
atro

l 

fro
m

 Ju
n

e to
 A

u
gu

st 2
016 to

 clean
 

u
p

 o
n

 M
o

n
d

ays in
 th

e d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 

area.

X

P
arkin

g e
n

fo
rcem

e
n

t a
n

d
 re

view
 

allo
catio

n
 o

f a
ll d

ay an
d

 tw
o

 h
o

u
r 

p
arkin

g

C
ity M

an
ager

K
P

D
Th

e
 co

m
m

ittee
 review

ed
 p

rio
rity 

in
 Ju

ly 2015 an
d

 w
as satisfied

 w
ith

 

th
e o

u
tco

m
e

X

P
arkin

g re
q

u
ire

m
e

n
ts are

 in
 revie

w
 

b
y P

lan
n

in
g an

d
 Zo

n
in

g h
ave p

ro
ce

ss 

to
 m

o
n

ito
r p

lan

Ed
u

cate th
e K

IB
 ro

le an
d

 C
ity

P
lan

n
in

g an
d

 Zo
n

in
g 

P
lan

n
in

g an
d

 Zo
n

in
g w

o
rke

d
 o

n
 

p
arkin

g in
 th

e d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 area; th

e 

co
m

m
ittee

 review
ed

 p
rio

rity in
 

Ju
ly 2015 an

d
 w

as satisfied
 w

ith
 

th
e o

u
tco

m
e

X

San
d

w
ich

 B
o

ard
s - co

n
tin

u
al 

e
n

fo
rcem

e
n

t o
f th

e co
d

e

Su
gge

stio
n

s m
ad

e b
y e

co
n

o
m

ic 

d
evelo

p
m

en
t su

b
co

m
m

ittee
 to

 

en
fo

rce co
d

e o
r u

p
d

ate

Id
en

tify w
h

ere an
d

 w
h

o
 u

ses 

san
d

w
ich

 b
o

ard
s

K
P

D
, C

ity M
an

ager, C
lerk, C

o
u

n
cil

 In
 A

p
ril 201

6, C
ity C

o
u

n
cil ad

o
p

ted
 

O
rd

. N
o

. 1
344

, R
ep

ealin
g K

o
d

iak C
ity 

C
o

d
e 1

2.08.03
0, O

b
stru

ctio
n

s; 

A
m

en
d

in
g K

o
d

iak C
ity C

o
d

e 

12
.12.030

, O
u

td
o

o
r D

in
in

g 

P
erm

it/En
cro

ach
m

en
t P

erm
it 

R
eq

u
ired

; an
d

 En
actin

g K
o

d
iak C

ity 

C
o

d
e C

h
ap

ter 1
2.18, En

cro
ach

m
en

t 

P
erm

its, R
egard

in
g th

e P
erm

issio
n

 o
f 

En
cro

ach
m

en
ts o

n
 C

ity Sid
ew

alks an
d

 

O
th

er C
ity P

ro
p

erty 

In
 Ju

ly 2
015 th

e co
m

m
ittee

 

review
ed

 p
rio

rity an
d

 is satisfied
 

w
ith

 o
u

tco
m

e
; sh

o
u

ld
 h

ave 

o
n

go
in

g co
d

e en
fo

rcem
e

n
t

X

5
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

29



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

R
e

m
o

val o
f Ju

n
k V

eh
icle

s fro
m

 

p
arkin

g lo
ts

C
ity M

an
ager fo

r veh
icles o

n
 C

ity 

p
ro

p
erty

In
 Ju

ly 2
015 th

e co
m

m
ittee

 

review
ed

 p
rio

rity an
d

 th
e C

ity 

M
an

ager clarified
 th

e C
ity 

rem
o

ves ju
n

k veh
icles fro

m
 C

ity 

p
ro

p
erty n

o
t fro

m
 p

rivate 

p
ro

p
erty

X

D
evelo

p
 a

 th
e

m
e

 fo
r d

o
w

n
to

w
n

*R
e

p
lace B

an
n

ers d
o

w
n

to
w

n

Estab
lish

 e
ven

ts th
at b

rin
g p

e
o

p
le

 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n

*Flea M
arke

t, A
rt Sh

o
w

s

* Farm
ers M

arke
t-Th

e
 su

m
m

e
r 

Farm
ers m

arke
t co

u
ld

 fit in
 Su

n
aq

trib
al h

all an
d

 e
xten

d
 to

 p
o

cke
t p

ark

* H
arb

o
r Ligh

ts Festival

*Seafo
o

d
 Sales fro

m
 H

arvesto
rs at 

K
o

d
iak P

o
rts an

d
 H

arb
o

rs

*Estab
lish

 a
n

 A
lu

tiiq
 M

e
m

o
rial P

ark

A
lign

 th
e th

em
e

 w
ith

 C
ity m

aster 

p
lan

.

Su
gge

stio
n

 o
f N

au
tical th

em
e

C
o

u
n

cil to
 ad

o
p

t a R
e

so
lu

tio
n

 fo
r 

Farm
ers M

arke
t w

ith
in

 th
e C

ity if 

estab
lish

ed

Effective Jan
u

ary 2
016 K

o
d

iak Stro
n

g's 

P
lan

n
in

g In
itiative is to

 stren
gth

en
 

d
o

w
to

w
n

 areas a fo
cu

s is a Farm
ers 

M
arke

t

A
lu

tiiq
 M

u
seu

m
 staff, b

o
ard

, an
d

 C
ity 

C
o

u
n

cil 

O
n

 A
u

gu
st 1

0, 2
017, C

o
u

n
cil 

ad
o

p
ted

 O
rd

in
an

ce N
o

. 1
364, 

A
m

en
d

in
g Sectio

n
 5

.04.050 o
f th

e 

K
o

d
iak C

ity C
o

d
e P

ertain
in

g to
 

P
ro

ced
u

res fo
r Issu

in
g P

erm
its fo

r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity Festivals, w
h

ich
 allo

w
s 

th
e C

ity M
an

ager  to
 gran

t 

co
m

m
u

n
ity activites, w

h
ich

 

in
clu

d
es activities in

 th
e 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 area, su

ch
 as a farm

ers 

m
arke

t.      
  

O
n

 D
e

cem
b

er 1
4, 2

017, C
o

u
n

cil 

ad
o

p
ted

 O
rd

in
an

ce N
o

. 1
370, 

A
m

en
d

in
g C

h
ap

ter 5
.04 o

f th
e 

K
o

d
iak C

ity C
o

d
e to

 A
d

d
 a N

ew
 

Sectio
n

 5
.04.080 P

ertain
in

g to
 

P
ro

ced
u

res fo
r Issu

in
g P

erm
its fo

r 

R
etail Sales o

f Seafo
o

d
 D

irectly 

Fro
m

 V
essels at C

ity P
o

rt an
d

 

H
arb

o
r Facilities

Th
e

 co
m

m
u

n
ity p

erm
it p

ro
cess 

stream
lin

e
d

 to
 en

h
an

ce an
d

 

in
crease th

e likelih
o

o
d

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
ity activities. Th

e p
erm

it 

p
ro

cess fo
r h

arvesto
rs to

 sell fresh
 

seafo
o

d
 o

ff th
e C

ity's d
o

ck w
ill b

e 

effective in
 Jan

yary 2
018.     

C
h

am
b

er's Execu
tive D

irecto
r 

co
m

m
u

n
icatin

g w
ith

 Farm
ers 

M
arke

t's b
ase liasio

n
s.  K

o
d

iak 

Stro
n

g is w
o

rkin
g o

n
 th

e in
itiative.   

H
arb

o
r Ligh

ts w
as co

-sp
o

n
so

red
 b

y 

th
e C

ity in
 2

014, 2
015, 2

016 an
d

 

2017.      

*B
an

n
ers w

e
re p

u
rch

ased
 fo

r th
e 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 area, rep

resen
tin

g th
e 

u
n

iq
u

en
ess o

f K
o

d
iak Islan

d
.

M
o

ve
d

 th
e 

th
em

e
 fo

r 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 to

 

Lo
n

g-Term
 

P
rio

rity  a
n

d
 

Estab
lish

in
g 

even
ts th

at 

b
rin

g p
eo

p
le 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 is  

o
n

go
in

g   

6
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

30



 2
0

1
7

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
e

velo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
es an

d
 P

u
b

lic Safety, a
n

d
 th

e B
eau

tificatio
n

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
ace Im

p
ro

vem
e

n
ts 

Sh
o

rt-Te
rm

 P
rio

ritie
s

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e sp
ecific 

ste
p

s/tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 n

eed
s to

 b
e in

vo
lved

 

to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 p
rio

rities?

R
eso

u
rces n

eed
ed

 to
 a

cco
m

p
lish

 

p
rio

rity
Statu

s o
f P

rio
rity

C
o

m
p

leted

D
evelo

p
 m

ap
 o

f vario
u

s th
em

e
d

 

"co
m

m
u

n
ity p

ath
s" o

f K
o

d
iak

Estab
lish

 key p
layers fo

r 

co
m

m
u

n
ity p

ath
s

D
eterm

in
e p

rivate an
d

 p
u

b
lic 

lan
d

P
arks an

d
 R

e
creatio

n

(p
o

ten
tio

n
 key p

layers-V
isito

rs B
u

reau
, 

B
ru

ce N
elso

n
)

C
o

m
m

ittee
 review

ed
 an

d
 

d
iscu

ssed
 th

ere w
ere m

ap
s 

availab
le at D

isco
ver K

o
d

iak an
d

 

th
e A

lu
tiiq

 M
u

seu
m

 
X

In
stall stairs u

p
 fro

m
 Sen

io
r C

itize
n

s 

o
f K

o
d

iak p
arkin

g lo
t to

 b
rid

ge a
n

d
 

cro
ssw

alk fro
m

 b
rid

ge a
cro

ss 

R
e

za
n

o
f

A
 stu

d
y fo

r stairw
ay w

o
u

ld
 n

ee
d

 

to
 b

e co
m

p
leted

 b
y th

e C
ity an

d
 

a p
ro

ject w
o

u
ld

 n
ee

d
 to

 b
e 

b
u

d
geted

 fo
r.

C
o

o
rd

in
ate w

ith
 Em

ergen
cy 

Evacu
atio

n
 P

lan
 -A

D
A

 co
m

p
lian

t

En
gin

ee
rin

g d
ep

artm
en

t

P
u

b
lic W

o
rks (In

creased
 sn

o
w

 rem
o

val)

D
O

T

A
p

p
ro

xim
ately $

70, 0
00-$100,000

In
 Ju

ly 2
015 th

e co
m

m
ittee

 

d
iscu

ssed
 an

d
 d

eterm
in

ed
 th

ey 

w
o

u
ld

 n
ee

d
 m

o
re in

p
u

t fro
m

 th
e 

C
ity C

o
u

n
cil fo

r th
is p

rio
rity

M
o

ve
d

 to
 

Lo
n

g-Term
 

P
rio

rity

R
e

d
esign

 lan
d

scap
in

g at th
e Y

1
. C

ity w
ill n

ee
d

 to
 research

 Y 

In
tersectio

n

2
. C

ity p
ro

ject th
at w

o
u

ld
 in

clu
d

e 

th
e P

arks an
d

 R
e

creatio
n

 

D
ep

artm
en

t an
d

 co
o

rd
in

atio
n

 

w
ith

 D
O

T

C
ity M

an
ager, P

u
b

lic W
o

rks, P
arks  an

d
 

R
ec. an

d
 D

O
T

In
 Jan

u
ary 2

016 C
ity M

an
ager 

in
d

icated
 th

e G
ard

en
 C

lu
b

 an
d

 

P
arks an

d
 R

e
creatio

n
 h

ave 

m
ain

tain
e

d
 th

e area fo
r p

ro
p

erty 

o
w

n
ed

 b
y D

O
T

X

Sn
o

w
 R

em
o

val a
n

d
 G

arb
age C

lean
 

u
p

P
arks an

d
 R

e
creatio

n
  p

articip
atin

g 

in
 d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 garb
arge clean

 u
p

 

sin
ce 2015 an

d
 ad

d
itio

n
al litter 

p
ick u

p
 h

as b
ee

n
 sch

ed
u

led
 b

y th
e 

C
h

am
b

er's Execu
tive D

irecto
r fo

r 

su
m

m
e

r m
o

n
th

s

X

Start a
 w

e
ekly co

lu
m

n
 in

 th
e

 p
ap

er 

"B
eau

tifu
l K

o
d

iak" to
 cele

b
ra

te
 

b
u

sin
e

sse
s th

at a
re

 m
akin

g 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak b
eau

tifu
l

Id
en

tify w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 w

rite 

co
lu

m
n

s an
d

 w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 co

ver 

co
sts

C
ity an

d
 ch

eck w
ith

 K
IB

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ity 

P
lan

n
in

g 

7
U

p
d

ated
 D

e
cem

b
er  2017

31



 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
eve

lo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
e

s an
d

 P
u

b
lic Safety, a

n
d

 th
e

 B
e

au
tificatio

n
 an

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
a

ce Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts 

Lo
n

g Term
 P

rio
rities

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e 

Sp
ecific Step

s/Tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 N

eed
 to

 B
e

 

In
vo

lved
 to

  A
cco

m
p

lish
 

P
rio

rities

R
e

so
u

rces N
e

e
d

ed
 to

 

A
cco

m
p

lish
 P

rio
rity

Statu
s o

f P
rio

rity

B
eau

tificatio
n

 an
d

 P
u

b
lic Sp

ace Im
p

ro
vem

en
ts

1
M

ake th
e

 b
o

rd
er o

f th
e

 h
arb

o
r clearly w

alkab
le

C
o

m
p

lete a p
ath

w
ay 

p
lan

 fo
r each

 h
arb

o
r.

Islan
d

 Trails N
etw

o
rk, K

o
d

iak 

M
aritim

e M
u

seu
m

, an
d

 C
ity 

Staff

2
0

1
7

-2
0

2
0

2
M

ake a lo
t at K

ash
evaro

ff an
d

 M
ill B

ay in
to

 an
 A

lu
tiiq

 M
em

o
rial 

p
ark

D
evelo

p
 d

e
sign

 an
d

 

o
b

tain
 p

e
rm

it, in
clu

d
in

g 

zo
n

in
g. Estim

ate co
st 

an
d

 ap
p

ro
p

riate fu
n

d
s.

 A
n

 au
th

o
rizatio

n
 fro

m
 C

ity 

C
o

u
n

cil fo
r a  cap

ital p
ro

ject 

w
o

u
ld

 h
ave to

 o
ccu

r.

2
0

1
8

-2
0

1
9

3
U

p
grad

e
 th

e
 area b

e
tw

ee
n

 b
e

tw
ee

n
 b

u
sin

e
sses H

e
n

ry's an
d

 To
n

y's 

b
y rep

lacin
g th

e ro
o

f w
ith

 clear co
ver an

d
 in

stall a m
u

ral. A
n

d
 

create a gree
n

 sp
ace b

e
tw

ee
n

 To
n

y's an
d

 N
P

M
C

 b
u

ild
in

g. 

In
 2

0
1

6
 a ro

o
f b

e
tw

ee
n

 

H
e

n
rys an

d
 To

n
ys w

as 

in
stalled

.  M
u

rals w
o

u
ld

 

n
e

ed
 ap

p
ro

val fro
m

 th
e

 

b
u

ild
in

g o
w

n
e

rs. Fu
n

d
s 

w
o

u
ld

 h
ave to

 b
e

 

allo
cated

 an
d

  artists 

selected
.

B
u

ild
in

g o
w

n
e

rs
2

0
1

7
-2

0
1

9

4
In

crease cro
ssw

alks as d
e

sign
ed

 in
 2

0
0

2
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity d

e
sign

 

w
o

rksh
o

p
 rep

o
rt 

2
0

1
7

-2
0

1
9

5
R

ein
stall a co

n
sisten

t aw
n

in
g o

r co
m

p
lim

en
tary facad

e
s. Su

ggested
 

to
 rem

o
ve th

e
 slan

ted
 ro

ck w
all an

d
 w

id
e

n
 th

e w
alkw

ay area to
 

ad
d

 in
 green

 sp
ace. C

o
ver "artist alley" is listed

. (A
fter rep

lacem
en

t 

o
f p

ip
e

s d
o

w
n

to
w

n
). 

B
u

ild
in

g o
w

n
e

rs 
B

ased
 o

n
 availab

le 

fu
n

d
in

g

6
C

o
n

vert b
lo

ck o
f M

arin
e

 W
ay b

e
tw

ee
n

 Sargen
t P

ark an
d

 R
efu

ge
 

in
to

 p
ed

estrian
 h

isto
ric co

re area.

7
D

u
rab

le W
elco

m
e to

 K
o

d
iak sign

age
K

o
d

iak R
o

tary C
lu

b
, D

O
T, an

d
 

C
ity Staff

8

R
ed

esign
 P

o
cket P

ark (A
fter rep

lacem
en

t o
f p

ip
e

s d
o

w
n

to
w

n
)

B
ased

 o
n

 availab
le gran

t 

fu
n

d
in

g

Lo
n

g Term
 P

rio
rities

D
escrip

tio
n

 o
f th

e 

Sp
ecific Step

s/Tasks

K
ey P

eo
p

le: W
h

o
 N

eed
 to

 B
e

 

In
vo

lved
 to

  A
cco

m
p

lish
 

P
rio

rities

R
e

so
u

rces N
e

e
d

ed
 to

 

A
cco

m
p

lish
 P

rio
rity

Statu
s o

f P
rio

rity

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
evelo

p
m

en
t

1

A
ll in

clu
sive eco

n
o

m
ic d

e
velo

p
m

en
t p

lan
 fo

r th
e co

m
m

u
n

ity, 

in
clu

d
in

g d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 an

d
 ru

ral villages

W
an

e
tta A

yers h
ired

 as th
e

 

C
ity's Eco

n
o

m
ic D

evelo
p

m
en

t 

C
o

n
su

ltan
t

O
n

go
in

g

2
Fo

o
d

 C
o

-o
p

 - sales tax exem
p

tio
n

 fo
r lo

cally gro
w

n
 u

n
p

re
p

ared
 

fo
o

d
s

H
arvest C

o
-o

p
 estab

lish
m

en
t 

in
 p

ro
gress

U
p

d
ated

 D
ecem

b
e

r 2
0

1
7

32



 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak R
e

vitalizatio
n

 A
ctio

n
 In

itiative
s: 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
eve

lo
p

m
e

n
t, So

cial Issu
e

s an
d

 P
u

b
lic Safety, a

n
d

 th
e

 B
e

au
tificatio

n
 an

d
 P

u
b

lic Sp
a

ce Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
evelo

p
m

en
t

3
B

u
sin

e
ss In

cu
b

ato
r in

 th
e d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 area
C

ity, K
A

N
A

 C
h

am
b

e
r, an

d
 

D
isco

ver K
o

d
iak

So
cial Issu

es an
d

 P
u

b
lic Safety

1
H

ave a D
ay Sh

e
lter w

ith
 su

p
p

o
rt services 

2
Sh

o
w

ers an
d

 Lau
n

d
ry facilites in

 d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 K

o
d

iak to
 su

p
p

o
rt th

e
 

fish
in

g in
d

u
stry.

C
ity is in

stallin
g sh

o
w

ers 

in
 Fish

erm
an

's H
all.  

Lau
n

d
ry facilities exist 

lo
cally.

C
o

m
p

leted
 Sh

o
w

ers -

2
0

1
7

3
In

stall stairs u
p

 fro
m

 th
e Sen

io
r C

itizen
s o

f K
o

d
iak p

arkin
g lo

t to
 

b
rid

ge an
d

 cro
ssw

alk fro
m

 b
rid

ge acro
ss R

ezan
o

f 

 N
ee

d
 C

o
u

n
cil ap

p
ro

val 

o
f cap

ital p
ro

ject.

D
O

T, D
O

W
L, Islan

d
 N

etw
o

rk 

Trail, an
d

 C
ity Staff.   D

O
T 

ap
p

ro
val. Sen

io
r C

en
ter 

b
u

ild
in

g o
w

n
e

r.

U
p

d
ated

 D
ecem

b
e

r 2
0

1
7

33



34



35



Resolution No. 2019–03 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2019–03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 

SECTION 14, UTILITIES (WATER), OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES 

AND AUTHORIZING THE ALLOWANCE OF WATER DISCOUNTS AS AN 

INCENTIVE FOR THE COLLECTION OF A WATER SAMPLE PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, in 2015 the City contracted with CH2M to review and recommend an 

updated rate structure for the water system; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the update was to determine revenue requirements related to 

water system operation and maintenance and capital improvement needs for five years; and 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Kodiak amended the water fees in Section 14 of 

the City’s Schedule of Fees and Charges to sufficiently fund system costs on June 9, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the adopted rate structure was by Resolution No. 2016–17 for the first five 

years and that the rate study will be updated in fiscal year 2021; and 

WHEREAS, to maintain and operate a compliant water system with the State of Alaska’s 

Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) water samples need to be collected from 40 

local residences; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager would like to streamline the efficiency and assure 

compliance of the community water sample program by creating a discount incentive program 

for local residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager would like to provide a water discount for local City and 

Service District residents that are identified to participate. The discount  amount of $55.23 for 

City residents and $66.26 for Service District residents during the collection months of January 

and February 2019 will be reflected on participants’ water utility bills; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager would like to provide a total water discount in the amount 

not to exceed of $2,650.80 for 2019, which will be reflected in water utility fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak City Code 13.08.010 states the rates for water supplied to 

properties within the corporate boundaries shall be established by resolution or motion of the 

City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that Section 14, Utilities (water) of the City’s Schedule of Fees and Charges are amended to 

establish a water discount incentive for collection of water samples during January and February 

2019 to meet the State of Alaska DEC requirements. 

Attachment A

36



Resolution No. 2019–03 

Page 2 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted:  

37



Attachment B

38



Attachment C

39



40



41



City Clerk Employment Agreement 
City Clerk Contract No. 239628 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY CLERK EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 11 day of January 2018, between the 

CITY OF KODIAK (hereinafter called “City” and NOVA M. JAVIER (hereinafter called “Clerk”). 

Employment shall begin April 15, 2019. 

SECTION 1: DUTIES 

Employer hereby agrees to employ Employee as City Clerk of the City of Kodiak to 

perform the functions and duties as specified in Alaska Statutes; City Charter; Kodiak City Code, 

and City Personnel Rules and Regulations and to perform such other legally permissible and 

proper duties and functions as the City Council may prescribe.  

SECTION 2: TERM 

A. This agreement shall remain in effect until terminated.

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the

City Council to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the provisions set 

forth in Section 3, paragraph A, of this agreement. 

C. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of

Employee to resign at any time from her position with Employer, subject only to the provisions 

set forth in Section 3, paragraph B, of this Agreement.  

SECTION 3: TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 

A. In the event Employee is terminated by Employer before expiration of the aforesaid term

of employment and during such time that Employee is willing and able to perform the duties of 

City Clerk, Employer agrees to pay Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to three (3) 

months’ aggregate salary plus accrued and unused annual leave in lieu of any and all other 

damages or monies that Employee might claim. Provided, however, that in the event Employee 

is terminated because of any illegal act involving personal gain to her, then Employer shall have 

no obligation to pay the aggregate severance sum designated in this paragraph.  

B. In the even Employee voluntarily resigns her position with Employer before expiration of

the aforesaid term of employment, then Employee shall give Employer three (3) months’ notice in 

advance, and Employer agrees to pay Employee any accrued and unused annual leave. 

Provided that such notice is given, there will be no breach of this Agreement by reason of said 

resignation, and Employee shall not be responsible for any damages hereunder.  

SECTION 4: SALARY 

Employer agrees to pay Employee for services rendered hereunder a salary of $126,000 

and payable in installments at the same time as other employees of the City are paid. Effective 

on the anniversary date during the term of this Agreement, Employer agrees to increase said 

Attachment A

42



City Clerk Employment Agreement 
City Clerk Contract No. 239628 

Page 2 of 4 

salary on the basis of a favorable annual review of Employee, the increase shall be discussed in 

executive session and approved in an open meeting. Section 1010 Leave Cash-In of the City’s 

Personnel Rules and Regulations shall apply to Employee. The Employee shall be given any 

cost of living allowance (COLA) granted to other City Employees. 

SECTION 5: HOURS OF WORK 

Employee shall work however may hours necessary to perform the duties in Section 1. It 

is recognized Employee must devote time outside normal office hours to the business of 

Employer and may work remotely from time to time.  

SECTION 6: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

Employer recognizes that the duties of Employee require a certain amount of travel by 

Employee including travel to IIMC, AAMC, AML, Records Management, and other professional 

development training. The City shall pay travel costs for professional development training that is 

authorized in the budget and shall pay the City’s daily per diem rate. 

SECTION 7: DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 

Employer agrees to pay the following dues and expenses on behalf of Employee: 

membership dues for the Alaska Association of Municipal Clerks, International Institute of 

Municipal Clerks, Association of Record Managers and Administrators, and any additional dues 

and subscriptions that are approved in the budget. 

SECTION 8: LEAVE 

Employee shall receive 30 days per year of annual leave (vacation leave) accrued 

at the rate of 9.23 hours per pay period and paid in equal installments during each pay 

period. 15 days (120 hours) of annual leave shall be provided in advance and accrual of 

leave will resume once the 15 days are accumulated. Employee’s annual leave requests 

shall be approved by the Mayor in advance of taking annual leave. 

Employee shall accrue sick leave at the same rate as other City employees as identified 

in Chapter 11, Section 1102 of the City’s Personnel Rules and Regulations and may use sick 

leave to provide care to employee’s parents. Employee shall be paid holiday pay at the same 

rate as other City employees as identified in Chapter 12. Employee shall be paid while on jury 

duty and while attending work related conferences and other training. 

SECTION 9: RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

43



City Clerk Employment Agreement 
City Clerk Contract No. 239628 

Page 3 of 4 

Employee shall remain covered by the Public Employees Retirement System. 

SECTION 11: PERSONNEL RULES 

Except to the extent specifically referenced in this Agreement, provisions of the City’s 

Personnel Rules and Regulations are not applicable to Clerk’s Personnel status as a City 

employee. 

SECTION 12: INSURANCE/MEDICAL BENEFITS 

Employee and her dependents shall be entitled to insurance and medical benefits as 

specified in Section 415 of the City of Kodiak’s Personnel Rules and Regulations. The City shall 

pay the premiums for health insurance for the Clerk and her dependents. 

SECTION 13:  EVALUATIONS 

As meeting scheduling allows, Employee shall be given a performance evaluation thirty 

(30) days before the Employee’s anniversary date of April 15, 2019.

SECTION 14: INDEMNIFICATION 

Beyond that required under Federal, State or Local law, Employer shall defend, 

save harmless and indemnify Employee against any obligation to pay money or perform 

or not perform action, including without limitation, any and all losses, damages, 

judgments, interests, settlements, penalties, fines, court costs and other reasonable 

costs and expenses of legal proceedings including attorneys’ fees, and any other 

liabilities arising from, related to, or connected with any tort, professional liability claim or 

demand or any other threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, 

whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative or investigation, whether groundless or 

otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of 

Employee’s duties as City Clerk or resulting from the exercise of judgment or discretion 

in connection with the performance of program duties or responsibilities, unless the act 

or omission involved willful or wanton conduct. The Employee may request and the 

Employer shall not unreasonably refuse to provide independent legal representation at 

Employer’s expense and Employer may not unreasonably withhold approval. Legal 

representation, provided by Employer for Employee, shall extend until a final 

determination of the legal action including any appeals brought by either party. The 

Employer shall indemnify Employee against any and all losses, damages, judgments, 

interest, settlements, penalties, fines, court costs and other reasonable costs and 

expenses of legal proceedings including attorneys’ fees, and any other liabilities incurred 

44



 
City Clerk Employment Agreement 
City Clerk Contract No. 239628 

Page 4 of 4 

by, imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or resulting from any 

claim, action, suit, or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of or in connection 

with the performance of her duties. Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior 

approval of the Employer for indemnification, as provided in this Section, to be available.  

Employee recognizes that Employer shall have the right to compromise and unless the 

Employee is a party to the suit which Employee shall have a veto authority over the 

settlement, settle any claim or suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a 

personal nature to Employee. Further, Employer agrees to pay all reasonable litigation 

expenses of Employee throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee 

is a party, witness or advisor to the Employer. Such expense payments shall continue 

beyond Employee's service to the Employer as long as litigation is pending. Further, 

Employer agrees to pay Employee reasonable consulting fees and travel expenses when 

Employee serves as a witness, advisor or consultant to Employer regarding pending 

litigation. 

 

SECTION 15: INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION 

This agreement is the fully integrated Agreement of Employer and Employee and supersedes all 

prior Agreements between the parties relating to the subject matter herein. This Agreement shall 

remain in force and shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, and heirs of each of the 

parties and shall not be changed orally but only by mutual agreement in writing by both parties.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Kodiak (Employer) and Nova Javier (Employee) 

hereby accept the above conditions, set their hand and seal to execute this Agreement, this 11 

day of January 2019. 

 

EMPLOYEE:      EMPLOYER: 

 

 

Nova M. Javier, MMC, City Clerk   Pat Branson, Mayor 

45



46



47



48



Attachment A

49



50



Attachment B

51



52



Attachment C

53



54



55



56



57



58



Attachment D

59



60


	Agenda for Regular Meeting January 10, 2019
	Minutes for Previous Regular Meeting December 13, 2018
	V. a. Res. 2019-01 Adopting FY2020
	V. a. Res. 2019-01 Attachment A (Resolution)
	V. b. Res. 2019-02 Rescinding Resolution No. 2013-19 and Re-Establishing a Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee
	V. b. Res. 2019-02 Attachment A (Res. 2019-02)
	V. b. Res. 2019-02 Attachment B (Res. 2013-19)
	V. b. Res. 2019-02 Attachment C (Interim Report on Revitalization Priorities)
	V. b. Res. 2019-02 Attachment D (Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Short-term and Long-term Priorities)
	V. c. Res. 2019-03 Amending Section 14, Utilities (Water), of the Schedule of Fees and Charges to Allow Water Discounts as Incentive for the Collection of a Water Sample Program
	V. c. Res. 2019-03 Attachment A (Resolution)
	V. c. Res. 2019-03 Attachment B (Sampling Instructions)
	V. c. Res. 2019-03 Attachment C (Important Information About Your Drinking Water)
	V. d. Authorization of City Clerk Employment Agreement with Nova Javier
	V. d. Attachment A (City Clerk Employment Agreement)
	V. e. Appointment of City Advisory Board Members
	V. e. Attachment A (Building Code Board of Appeals)
	V. e. Attachment B (Parks and Recreation)
	V. e. Attachment C (Port and Harbors Advisory Board)
	V. e. Attachment D (Personnel Board)



